
CABINET
4.00 pm WEDNESDAY, 2ND MAY, 2018

COUNCIL CHAMBER
This Agenda has been prepared by the 

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


OPEN SESSION

Portfolio

3. Funding Flexibility Programme 2018 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services

3 - 6

Information Reports

4. Supply of Asphalt and Tarmacadam 
To receive report of the Chief Executive 7 - 8

5. National Fostering Framework 
To receive report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services

9 - 12

6. Annual Report Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments 2016/2017 
To receive report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services

13 - 28

7. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors     K O'Neill (Chair)
                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors     H Barrett, A Barry, D Hughes and 
G Thomas

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET – PORTFOLIO REPORT

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Funding Flexibility Programme 2018   

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform elected members and colleagues of the 
securing of the Flexible Funding Grant and the challenges and opportunities this 
revised grant structure provides the local authority moving forward. 

1.2 The report identifies the grants that make up the funding flexibility, its purpose and 
the drive to establish a clearer understanding of how these grants are contributing 
through a single outcomes framework to the early intervention and prevention 
agenda.  Including the potential requirement to find substantial efficiencies out of the 
grants in future years. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1 The contents of the report and the flexibility across the grants secured for 2018/19 be 
noted.

 
2.2 The budget reductions in 2018/19 and the agreed action to mitigate the reductions 

imposed be noted along with the potential reductions faced in 2019/20.  

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Elected members and officers will be aware  that the Public Service Board  put 
Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf forward as a pathfinder programme to Welsh 
Government (WG) for its new funding flexibility approach which has now 
incorporated a number of grant funding streams already received by the Local 

Date Written April 2018
Report Author Chris Hole 
Service Area Community Wellbeing 
Committee Division Portfolio
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 2nd May 2018

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Authority.  This single grant is an amalgamation of 10 programmes for 2018/19 which 
sit within different parts of the Local Authority.  The individual guidance that supports 
and directs  these programmes below is still currently in place for 2018/19: 

Grant Location HOS
Supporting People Social Services Mark Anderton
Flying Start Social Services Chris Hole 
Families First Social Services Chris Hole 
Legacy Fund Social Services Chris Hole 
Childcare and Play (formerly called 
‘Out of School Childcare Grant’) 

Social Services Chris Hole 

Homelessness Prevention Regeneration Steve Peters 
Rent Smart Wales Enforcement Regeneration Steve Peters
St David’s Day Fund Social Services Annabel Lloyd 
Communities for Work Plus (formerly 
called ‘Employability Grant’) 

Regeneration Chris Long 

Promoting Positive Engagement for 
Young People at Risk of Offending 

Regional Youth Offending Service grant 

3.2 The purpose of this approach as identified by WG in its Funding Flexibility 
Supplementary Guidance  January 2018 is identified as:: 

Prosperity for all: the national strategy sets out the need to deliver public services in 
a more collaborative and integrated way.  This grant is seeking to improve the 
outcomes of the most vulnerable individuals through early intervention, prevention 
and support activities. 

The outcomes we are seeking to influence reflect the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (‘FGA’) well-being goals.  There should be a focus on 
actively helping those who require help now and also the development of innovative 
approaches to delivery designed to prevent people becoming more vulnerable in the 
future.

3.3 WG has also identified within this guidance the need to develop a single outcomes 
framework within each local authority, using a national template.  Also required is a 
single Equalities Impact Assessment which also contains an impact assessment on 
children’s rights.  

4.0 FUNDING FLEXIBILITY 2018/19

4.1 Further to the Public Service Board having put Cwm Taf forward as a pathfinder 
programme discussions have been held locally and with colleagues in Rhondda 
Cynon Taf as to the ability to submit a single Funding Flexibility Application.  The 
Tackling Poverty Strategic Group (TPSG) agreed that Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council should at this point in developments submit a separate application to secure 
the immediate resources.  This would allow both councils the opportunity to consider 
the opportunities this presents for more collaborative arrangements as the impacts of 
Funding Flexibility  becomes clearer.  

Page 4



4.2 An application was progressed and submitted on behalf of the Local Authority and on 
27th March 2018 the authority secured the award of £6,796,460.90 which does not 
include the regional allocation to the Youth Offending Service as shown below.  
These resources are in the main already committed for the 2018/19 financial years in 
the individual spending plans of the grants, submitted to WG alongside the overall 
application.

Grant Name Amount Reduction
Supporting People* £2,123,163
Flying Start £2,482,888.80 - 1.8% (£45,511)
Families First £1,015,020.73 - 1.8% (£18,605)
Legacy Fund £356,534 - 5.4% (£20,466)
Childcare and Play (formerly called 
‘Out of School Childcare Grant’) 

£72,307

Homelessness Prevention £73,080 New Grant 2018/19
Rent Smart Wales Enforcement £5,228
St David’s Day Fund £25,674
Communities for Work Plus (formerly 
called ‘Employability Grant’) 

£642,565.38 New Grant 2018/19

Promoting Positive Engagement for 
Young People at Risk of Offending 

Regional allocation to RCT £426,000

4.3 Welsh Government in making this allocation were keen to stress in the offer letter 
that “*You have flexibility across all of these grants, however, it is our expectation 
that you should allocate funding to the Supporting People (SP) programme at least at 
the level of your SP allocation unless you can demonstrate that you can be sure of 
delivering the same, or improved, services for less money as a result of efficiencies”. 

4.4 The resource awarded for some of the grants has without any significant warning 
period been reduced as shown in the above and has been considered by the TPSG.  
In accordance with the opportunity for flexibility all grants will be required to hold 
underspends during quarters 1 and 2 to allow the TPSG to address the overall 
financial position of the grant.  Support from individual departments and accountancy 
is critical to ensuring this flexible approach can be implemented consistently and 
openly across the grants.  

5.0 FUNDING FLEXIBILITY – CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

5.1 Prior to the ministerial announcement of the Funding Flexibility programme, 
discussions took place with WG that indicate further reductions to budgets in 
2019/20 could be expected.  It is indicated that these reductions could be circa 5% 
which would mean a reduction to Merthyr Tydfil of approximately £340,000.  By 
bringing these grants into a single framework WG are seeking for LA’s to mitigate 
these budget impacts through streamlining of back room functions across the grants.  
Something which WG view as an easy option.  However presently each grant 
continues to have a separate application and performance requirements.

Page 5



5.2 Supporting People - WG in response to the initial application submitted queried the 
governance arrangements of the Supporting People programme.  WG advised that 
the Regional Collaborative Committee (RCC) is only an advisory body and that the 
Governance arrangements needed to be strengthened.  Since this feedback it has 
been agreed that Supporting People now come under the Governance of the 
Tackling Poverty Strategic Group (TPSG) alongside the rest of the grants named in 
the funding flexibility programme. 

5.3 An operational leads group for the individual grants has been established reporting to 
the TPSG.  Its purpose being to identify opportunities for greater collaboration across 
the grants to improve outcomes and to identify potential efficiency areas to meet the 
savings required in 2019/20.  As this progresses future reports to cabinet or council 
will be required.  Ideas already coming forward through the group are:

 Single point of access for support.
 Integrating eligibility checks.
 Information sharing to improve outcomes.
 Joint commissioning of services with nominated lead.

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

7.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form has been prepared for the purpose of 
this report.  It has been found that a full assessment is not required at this time.  The 
form can be accessed on the Council’s website/intranet via the ‘Equality Impact 
Assessment’ link.  

LISA CURTIS JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES
                CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 6



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Supply of Asphalt & Tarmacadam

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 Cabinet of  21st March 2018, granted a delegation to allow sign off of the award at 
officer level in consultation with the portfolio member, of a framework for the supply 
of asphalt and tarmacadam.

1.2 The tender process has been completed, this report highlights the outcome of the 
process.

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1 Each year, highways are allocated capital to facilitate the resurfacing of roads within 
the County Borough.

2.2 Over the last 4 years, procurement staff have been helping highways become 
compliant with procurement rules, moving away from spot pricing resulting in an EU 
compliant supply framework.

2.3 Due to timings it was not possible to comply with procurement board requirements 
and cabinet reporting timescales if the framework was to be delivered before the 
resurfacing programme started in the second week of April 2018.

2.4 The Requirements were advertised throughout Europe on the 20th February 2018 
and the tender closed on the 22nd March 2018.

2.5 Evaluation was based upon a ratio of 80% price 20% quality.  Quality was assessed 
against service delivery, waiting time and management information.

Date Written 4th April 2018
Report Author Paul Davies
Service Area Procurement
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 2nd May 2018

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2.6 Product quality is governed by European standards such as BS EN 14023:2010 
which assigns specific standards for bitumen and bituminous binders, all tenderers 
were required to comply with the stated standards to ensure product quality.

2.7 The evaluation resulted in the following total scores

Supplier Overall Score Rank
Tenderer A 90.50 1
Tenderer B 87.72 2
Tenderer C 72.27 3

2.8 All three suppliers were awarded to the framework on a primary and contingent 
basis, to ensure that if the primary supplier is unable to deliver then highways have 
the backup of using the contingent suppliers.

2.9 The established framework will be a 1 year framework with the option to extend up to 
a further 3 years, providing a price negotiation window each year prior to extension 
and delivery for following resurfacing programmes.

2.10 The tender is awarded to the highest scoring tenderer (the primary supplier) – 
Hanson Quarry Products.

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

3.1 The anticipated spend for 18/19 asphalt and tarmacadam was £139,280 based on 
last year’s prices.  The tender returned a cost of £131,940, providing an efficiency of 
£7340 which can be recycled into further resurfacing work.

4.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form has been prepared for the purpose of 
this report.  It has been found that a full assessment is not required at this time.  The 
form can be accessed on the Council’s website/intranet via the ‘Equality Impact 
Assessment’ link.

  

ELLIS COOPER 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

ANDREW BARRY
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

NO

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 8



Civic Centre, Castle Street,
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

National Fostering Framework

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides information to cabinet members regarding phase three of the 
implementation of the National Fostering Framework in the Cwm Taf region.  Cabinet 
members will have received a prior report in relation to the National Fostering 
Framework 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1 The National Fostering Framework (NFF) phase two report was presented to Welsh 
Government at the end of March 2017 and a programme of work for 2017-2018 was 
agreed at the same time.

2.2 A key aspect of the phase three work programme was for each region to develop a 
work programme setting out how it is to implement the NFF.  As this phase of the 
national programme of work is nearing an end it is timely for cabinet members to be 
updated on the work on-going in the Cwm Taf region to ensure implementation.

2.3 Implementation of the NFF is essential in improving outcomes for children and young 
people who are looked after by the Local Authority and as Corporate Parents, it is 
critical that cabinet is aware of developments in relation to this.

Date Written 03/03/18
Report Author Zarah Newman
Service Area Children's Services
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 2nd May 2018

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



3.0 CWM TAF NFF REGIONAL WORK PROGRAMME

3.1 Cabinet members will be aware that there is a sound history of collaboration 
between the Local Authorities in Cwm Taf eg. the piloting of the Fostering Wellbeing 
project, so developing a regional approach to implementation of the NFF has a solid 
foundation on which to build.

3.2  At a national level there is a NFF National Strategic Steering group.  Ann Batley, 
Children’s Services Director for RCT is the Cwm Taf representative on this group 
and RCT is the lead authority for the NFF in the region.

3.3 Feeding into the national group is the regional co-ordinators group, chaired by Jane 
Moore the NFF National Project Manager and the Cwm Taf NFF working group 
comprising of the Heads of Children's Services from Merthyr and RCT and the 
service and team managers responsible for fostering.  This group has been meeting 
on a monthly basis to plan regional implementation of the NFF.  In January 2018 a 
part time temporary NFF Co-ordinator for the region was appointed using grant 
monies administered by the NFF Strategic Steering group and allocated to lead 
authorities for each region.

3.4 The role of the regional co-ordinator is to co-ordinate and contribute to the 
development of a Cwm Taf work programme with managers and senior managers 
that will be used to inform the development of the NFF on a national basis via the 
Strategic Steering group and implementation of the NFF in the Cwm Taf region.

3.5 The NFF regional working group has identified the following key priorities for the 
work programme:

 Improve the recruitment and retention of foster carers across the region.
 Identify the learning from the Fostering Wellbeing project and translate this into 

regional practice.
 Develop a local performance management framework that enables reporting 

nationally and tells us what we need to know locally.
 Scope the potential for developing a Cwm Taf fostering panel.
 Adapt the Post Approval Training Framework for foster carers to meet local 

needs.
 Embed the Adoption and Fostering Association (AFA) Cymru Best Practice 

Guidance for Kinship care.

3.6 Work has begun on each of these priorities and will include consultation with foster 
carers, social workers, team managers, trainers, fostering panel members and chairs, 
AFA Cymru, senior managers, children, young people and their families and the NFF 
Project Manager to ensure that there is buy in from all relevant people.

3.7 AFA Cymru will be undertaking a consultation event in Cwm Taf regarding the Post 
Approval Training Framework which sets out a recommended framework for the 
training of foster carers once they have been approved.

Page 10



3.8 AFA Cymru will also be facilitating a session on Kinship Care (when children live with 
family members or family friends when they cannot live with their birth parents) in 
April 2018.

3.9 Two task and finish groups that will also meet monthly, have been established to 
drive this work forward.  These meetings will take place at least once per week prior 
to the Cwm Taf NFF working group to enable decision making on critical elements of 
the implementation.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Regional Co-ordinator post has been funded by grant monies for 2017-2018.

5.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form has been prepared for the purpose of 
this report.  It has been found that a full assessment is not required at this time.  The 
form can be accessed on the Council’s website/intranet via the ‘Equality Impact 
Assessment’ link.  

LISA CURTIS JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES
CABINET MEMBER FOR                

SOCIAL SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Previous Reports Various Children’s Services

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Annual Report Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments 2016/2017

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 Local Authorities are required by the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 
produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments policy and procedures.

1.2 This report highlights the key points contained in the Annual Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments report. 

1.3 The Annual Report on Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments for 2016/2017 is attached as Appendix 1.

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1 Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, 
often in very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a 
real difference in people’s lives.  Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, 
people will make a complaint about the service they have received.

2.2 Local Authorities are required by the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 
produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments policy and procedures.

Date Written April 2018
Report Author Jonathan Strong
Service Area Complaints
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 2nd May 2018

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



2.3 The Annual Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments Report 
for 2016/2017 sets out the Department’s performance in relation to how it has dealt 
with the complaints, representations and compliments it has received.

2.4 The report details the number of complaints that were received and dealt with at all 
the available stages of the policy across both children’s and adults’ services.

3.0 ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

3.1 The annual report for 2015/2016 showed that in total we received 64 complaints.

3.2 The table below details the complaints that were received in 2015/2016 across 
Children’s and Adult services.

Service Area Stage 1

Adult Services 25

Children’s Services 39

Total 64

3.3 The annual report for 2016/2017 showed that in total we received 68 complaints of 
which 96% were resolved at the informal stage.

3.4 The table below details the complaints that were received in 2016/2017 across 
Children’s and Adult services across all stages of the complaints process.

Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Total

Adult Services 27 2 29

Children’s Services 38 1 39

Total 65 3 68

3.5 There was an increase of 4 or 6.25% in the total number of complaints received 
between 2015/2016 and 2016/2017.  However this is still a significant reduction from 
the number of complaints received in 2014/2015.

Page 14



3.6 For comparison purposes the number of complaints received over the last three 
years was as follows.

Service Area 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015

Adult Services 29 25 36

Children’s Services 39 39 52

Total 68 64 88

3.7 For a variety of reasons, people will make a complaint about the service they have 
received.  It is important that anyone who makes a complaint about our services has 
a right to be listened to properly with their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  
In addition, it is important that Local Authorities learn from these complaints and 
where necessary use them to identify where services should be changed and 
improved.

3.8 Every effort is made to resolve matters at a local level with the emphasis on 
achieving successful resolution of complaints.  At stage one the Local Authority 
usually offers to discuss (either face-to-face or by telephone) the matter with the 
complainant within ten working days to attempt to resolve matters.  This approach 
allows for quick and successful resolution of most complaints.

3.9 Complaints received that are progressed to Stage 2 are normally more complex in 
nature and often contain several components of dissatisfaction that need to be 
independently investigated.

3.10 Our emphasis at all stages is focused on achieving satisfactory resolution of matters 
rather than upholding or not upholding complaints.  

3.11 All complaints are unique in their own right and often contain several elements of 
dissatisfaction to be addressed.  This is particularly relevant at the formal stage, 
hence the reason why the majority of stage two complaints are part upheld – some 
components being endorsed, while others not vindicated. 

3.12 Communication issues including failure to respond within appropriate timescales to 
messages and failure to update customers on decision continued to be a theme 
through this reporting period.

3.13 Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, 
often in very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a 
real difference in people’s lives.  Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, 
people will make a complaint about the service they have received.  It is important 
that anyone who makes a complaint about our services has a right to be listened to 
properly with their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  In addition, it is 
important that Local Authorities learn from these complaints and where necessary 
use them to identify where services should be changed and improved.

Page 15



3.14 Every effort is made to resolve matters at a local level with the emphasis on 
achieving successful resolution of complaints.  At stage one the Local Authority 
usually offers to discuss (either face-to-face or by telephone) the matter with the 
complainant within ten working days to attempt to resolve matters.  This approach 
allows for quick and successful resolution of most complaints.

3.15 Whilst we do our very best and work hard to resolve complaints within the statutory 
timescales it is however acknowledged that some complaints can be complex, 
sensitive and difficult to resolve and that this is not possible on all occasions.  It is 
important to note that an over emphasis on quick resolution within performance 
indicator timescales could detract from ensuring that full and proper consideration is 
given to complaints and that at times to achieve a successful resolution to the 
complaint it is necessary to take longer to investigate than the set timescales.

3.16 Timescales will continue to be monitored to improve and promote adherence to 
statutory legislation and increase the timeliness of responses at stage one.

3.17 Social Services continues to adopt a positive attitude towards complaints, we 
continue to learn from complaints and view complaints as a valuable form of 
feedback, which assists in the development and improvement of services.  While not 
all complaints are upheld they do, however, provide useful information in respect of 
the way services are delivered.  They provide us with the opinions of our customers 
and also provide opportunities to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of 
expected standards.

3.18 Social Services will continue to provide for the needs of the community, achieving 
the Council’s vision and strategic aims for the future.  The needs of the population 
are changing and we will continue to learn and develop from complaints.  Services 
have continued to experience high levels of demand, reflecting the levels of 
disadvantage and the challenges faced by a significant number of families living in 
the County Borough.  The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides citizens with 
an essential, effective way of communicating their concerns so that levels of 
customer satisfaction can be increased and our services continue to improve. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.

5.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form has been prepared for the purpose of 
this report.  It has been found that a full assessment is not required at this time.  The 
form can be accessed on the Council’s website/intranet via the ‘Equality Impact 
Assessment’ link.  

LISA CURTIS JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES
CABINET MEMBER FOR                

SOCIAL SERVICES

Page 16



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Social Services 
Complaints Policy

10th September 2014 Complaints Office, Civic Centre

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 17



Appendix 1

Annual Report 
Social Services

Complaints, 
Representations and 

Compliments
2016 / 2017

Page 18



INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

Local Authorities are required by regulation to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social 
Services Complaint procedures.  This report provides a summary of statistical information relating to 
complaints and representations dealt with during the period April 2016 to March 2017. 

Social Services in Merthyr Tydfil adopts a positive attitude towards complaints and views them as a valuable 
form of feedback, which assists in the development and improvement of services. Complaints also provide 
an opportunity to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of an expected standard.

The representation and complaints procedure is widely publicised generally and specifically to people who 
use our services and provides them with an opportunity to:
 Voice their concerns when they are dissatisfied in order that the issue can be rectified to their 

satisfaction, wherever possible;
 Make compliments;
 Suggest improvements;
 Challenge decisions.

The aim is for our representation and complaints procedure to secure a better service for all the people 
using social care services and is underpinned by the following key principles:
 Commitment to providing quality services;
 Accessible and supportive to those with particular needs;
 Prompt and responsive with resolution at the earliest possible opportunity Strong problem solving 

element;
 Operated without prejudice or discrimination;
 Adheres to the principle of equal opportunity.

The representation and complaints procedure also provides an opportunity for service users to address 
concerns in relation to independent sector providers where they remain dissatisfied following 
implementation of the agencies own internal complaints procedures.

Receipt of all the complaints received were acknowledged within the statutory timescale (two working days). 
In some cases the issues raised fell outside the responsibility of the Directorate and in these instances, the 
Complaints Officer liaises with the appropriate Directorate or Agency. 

The Social Services complaints process has two stages: 

Stage One: Local Resolution – The emphasis at this stage of the process is to resolve the complaint by means 
of discussion and problem solving.  The complainant will be offered a discussion about the issues they have 
raised and this can either be done by telephone or face to face in an attempt to resolve the issues.  This must 
be done within 10 working days of the receipt of the complaint. Following this discussion and any further 
investigation that is necessary, a written response will be provided within 5 working days.

Stage Two: Formal Consideration – If the complainant remains dissatisfied after completion of stage one, 
they may request that the complaint proceeds to stage two of the process.  This involves a formal 
independent investigation of the complaint with a report being produced by the investigating officer 
appointed to the case.  The timescale for dealing with this stage is 25 working days. 

Page 19



If the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of the stage two investigation, they may progress 
their complaint to the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales.

All Social Services complaints received are recorded into the following categories:-

ANNUAL COUNCIL REPORTING FRAMEWORK (ACRF) MODEL
FOR CATEGORISATION OF COMPLAINTS

1. ACCESS
Lack of information; service delays; waiting lists; access to service; refusal of service.

2. ASSESSMENT
Decision delays; service costs; assessed needs; charging policies; delays in assessment
 The council failing to do something which the customer thinks it should have been done, 

even if it was not actually asked to do it:
o Failure to implement actions agreed in meetings.
o Failure to carry out an agreed / requested assessment.

3. CARE MANAGEMENT AND REVIEW
Removal and reduction of service; child protection; change of staff.
 The council failing to do something which the customer thinks it should have done, even if 

it was not actually asked to do it.
o Failure to implement actions agreed in meetings.
o Failure to carry out an agreed / requested assessment.

 The council doing something that the customer did not want it to do.
o The council making a decision to do something that the customer does want to 
happen in the future (e.g. planned placement changes, withdrawal of a payment facility).

4. RANGE OF SERVICES
Lack of service; identified needs not being met.

5 QUALITY OF SERVICE
Communication issues; not following through what was promised; continuity of care; not following 
procedure and policy; time keeping; failure to respond; breach of confidentiality; service quality; 
timescales; financial; late calls; medication; staff issues; conduct and attitude; standards.
 The council has not achieved the standard it says it will provide.
 The Service has not been provided to the standard which the customer thinks is 

reasonable:
o The council is carrying out its duties in an unsatisfactory way.
o Failure to follow council procedures including delayed processing, adherence to 

timescales, agreed workflows and stages.

 Unacceptable behaviour by staff including rudeness, violence and aggression.
 Poor communication from the department to service user including:

o Failure to respond in appropriate timescales to messages and correspondence – 
this could be specific identification of an individual member of staff or of the team / 
service in general.

o Staff failure to update customer with regard to changes to meetings, appointments 
etc.

 The council failing to do something which it has been asked to do.

Page 20



 The council failing to do something which the customer thinks it should have done, even if 
it was not actually asked to do it:
o Failure to implement actions agreed in meetings.
o Failure to implement actions following a previous complaint.
o Failure to carry out an agreed / requested assessment.

6. PROMOTING INDEPENDENCE AND SOCIAL INCLUSION
Discrimination; not being listened to.

Table 1: Overall complaints resolved

Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Total

Adult Services 27 2 29

Children’s Services 38 1 39

Total 65 3 68

The above table does not reflect the number of concerns received within the complaints department 
however if the matter is identified as case management and not a complaint we do not record these on our 
system but pass the concerns to the appropriate line manager.

Table 2:  Complaints over the last 2 years

Service Area 2015/16 2016/17

Adult Services 25 29

Children’s Services 39 39

Total 64 68

ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINT – STAGE ONE

Timescale (at the time of reporting) 2016/17

Within 15 working days 58%

Over 15 working days 14%

Within 20 working days -

Over 20 working days -

Ongoing / On hold 28%

Page 21



The stage one ‘start date’ is governed by (a) the date of acknowledgement, (b) the date on which an 
advocate is appointed or (c) where a complaint  is made by ‘other persons’, the date on which the Local 
Authority decides that the person has sufficient interest to warrant consideration.

CHILDREN’S SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINT – STAGE ONE

The stage one ‘start date’ is governed by (a) the date of acknowledgement, (b) the date on which an 
advocate is appointed or (c) where a complaint  is made by ‘other persons’, the date on which the Local 
Authority decides that the person has sufficient interest to warrant consideration.

Timescale (at the time of reporting) 2016/17

Within 15 working days 54%

Over 15 working days 3%

Within 20 working days -

Over 20 working days -

Ongoing / On hold 43%

Page 22



ADULT AND CHILDREN’S SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINTS – STAGE TWO

The formal complaints received are more complex in nature and often contain several components of 
dissatisfaction to be independently investigated.  During this reporting period, we received three complaints 
which were dealt with at stage 2.  There has been a significant reduction in stage 2 complaints, this is due in 
large part to the complaints department being more pro-active in the management of the complaints 
process  through setting up meetings with the Line Manager and complainant within the stage 1 process.

Page 23



COMPLAINT OUTCOMES
The emphasis of the complaints process is focused on achieving a satisfactory resolution of matters rather 
than upholding or not upholding complaints.  

All complaints are unique in their own right and often contain several elements of dissatisfaction to be 
addressed.  This is particularly relevant at the formal stage, hence the reason why the majority of stage 2 
complaints are part upheld – some components being agreed while others not supported.

Table 4: Adult Services Complaints Outcomes 2016/17

Not Upheld Part Upheld Upheld Total

Stage 1 16 4 2 22

Stage 2 0 2 0 2

Total 16 6 2 24

Page 24



Table 5: Children’s Services Complaints Outcomes 2016/17

Not Upheld Part Upheld Upheld Total

Stage 1 14 7 0 21

Stage 2 0 1 0 1

Total 14 8 0 22

COMPLEXITY 
It should be noted however that the low number of stage 2 complaints does not reflect the significant time 
that they demand of the complaints department and senior managers and principal officers in Social Services 
due to the complex and contentious nature of these complaints.

HABITUAL / VEXATIOUS COMPLAINANTS
During the year, one individual was subject to restrictions under this policy, as a result of their behaviour and 
persistence in pursuing a complaint where the council’s complaint procedure has been fully and properly 
implemented and exhausted.  Individual’s continued inclusion under the Habitual/Vexatious Complaints 
Policy is reviewed every six months. 

LEARNING THE LESSONS
It is crucial that there is learning from complaints at all stages of the procedure, resulting in improved 
services and service delivery, wherever possible.  Complaints provide useful information in respect of the 
way that services are delivered.

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Social Services adopts a positive attitude towards complaints, we continue to 
learn from complaints and view complaints as a valuable form of feedback, which assists in the development 
and improvement of services.  While not all complaints are upheld they do, however, provide useful 
information in respect of the way services are delivered.  They provided us with the opinions of our 
customers and also provide opportunities to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of expected 
standards.

Some examples of actions arising from outcomes of investigations of complaints are summarised:- 

 A common theme reported is a lack of information and communication from Social Services 
including failure to respond within appropriate timescales to messages and failure to update 
customers on decisions, delays in assessments, failure to implement agreed actions, and not 
following through what was promised.  Examples also include staff failure to update customers with 
regard to changes to meetings, appointments etc.  

 When the complaint is highly complex the Local Authority needs to ensure that they respond to 
‘scattergun’ complainants with one voice which will prevent the local authority being perceived as 
unable to communicate across departments

Page 25



 For managers to support staff members who are subjected to inappropriate; abusive and aggressive 
behaviour from their clients and families.  

 Since the Local Authority has adopted the Welsh Government guidance on handling Complaints and 
Representations by Local Authority Social Services the Complaints department has within stage 1 of 
the procedure arranged meetings between the complainants and the managers of the relevant 
departments.  This has significantly reduced the number of complaints escalating to stage 2. 

There is a need however to establish a better overview of complaints and utilise this to address themes and 
specific issues that arise to further improve services.

COMPLIMENTS
It is always important to also hear when people are happy with what we have done. A total of 10 
compliments and positive comments were formally recorded during the year.

Compliments provide valuable information regarding the quality of services identifies where they are 
working well and identifies a balanced reflection of members of the public’s perception of our services.

It is imperative that staff and managers pass all compliments received to the complaints department in order 
they can be recorded.

Examples of compliments received during the year:-
Comment:

‘A confident and skilful worker who will prove to be a real asset for this Local Authority in the years to 
come….It is difficult when considering the evidence in this case not to be reminded of the case of Baby 
Peter.  Thankfully the agencies intervened to rescue XX and the case recording is a poignant reminder of the 
value of effective safeguarding services in our society’.

‘I wish to convey my sincere gratitude to XX and XX at MTCBC, I cannot thank you enough please convey this 
to all involved’.

‘Thank you for all your help over the years’.

‘I just want to thank you for all your help with XX.  I am so grateful and I thank you and your team so much 
you go beyond and above your job and when I could not have been there for XX you have.  I hope you and 
your family have a blessed Christmas’.

‘Just wanted to thank everyone for the fantastic commitment and support shown and was impressed by the 
departments staff including the admin support’.

‘I am writing in connection with the services provided to me.  In particular I would like to highlight the work 
of XX as they have been the person whom I have had the most contact.  He is consummate professional who 
has always been concerned to ensure I was fully appraised of the complex regulations associated with the 
case.  He has pointed me in the right direction, doing a difficult job with tact, good humour, attention to 
detail and an obvious empathy for his clients.  Your team are a shining example of all that is best in the local 
authority service.  I would never have coped without their help’.

Page 26



CONCLUSION

The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides service users and their advocates with an effective way of 
communicating their concerns so that levels of customer satisfaction can be increased and our services 
continue to improve.

Like all other Councils in Wales we are facing the need to reduce the amount of money we spend. However, 
despite the increasing challenges faced by public services, in general, the number of complaints received is 
relatively small in comparison to the nature of the services provided. Overall, 65 of all complaints were 
resolved at stage one.  However, it should be noted, that we need to improve on the number of stage one 
complaint’s we resolve within 15 working days.  

Social Services continue to provide for the needs of the community, achieving the Council’s vision and 
strategic aims for the future. The needs of the population are changing and we will continue to learn and 
develop from complaints.  On average, users of our services recognise the support and good practice 
afforded to them and the number of complaints recorded continues to be a very low percentage of the total 
number of people and children of Merthyr Tydfil who are provided with services.  

The pressure on social services continues to increase with a rise in public expectation of the services we 
provide. This coupled with an increasing demand and an increase in the complexity of the cases that social 
services are dealing with will inevitably result in an increase in service requests for social services across both 
Adult Services and Children’s Services.  

Services have continued to experience high levels of demand, reflecting the levels of disadvantage and the 
challenges faced by a significant number of families living in the County Borough. The Social Care Complaints 
Procedure provides citizens with an essential, effective way of communicating their concerns so that levels 
of customer satisfaction can be increased and our services continue to improve.  With the Implementation of 
the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in April 2016 the expectations of the people we serve has 
increased, this will also be in the context of continued austerity.  We are therefore likely to continue to see 
an increase in complaints whilst services develop to meet the new level of expectation and austerity 
measures are absorbed.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Funding Flexibility Programme 2018
	4 Supply of Asphalt and Tarmacadam
	5 National Fostering Framework
	6 Annual Report Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments 2016/2017

